
Minutes of Board of Adjustment Meeting 
held Tuesday, November 1, 2016, at 7:00 P.M., 
in the Council Chambers, 11 North 3rd Street, 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Scott Cummings. 

Roll Call 
Tom Buck 
Jeff Truhlar 
John Moreland (Vice-Chairman) 
Sylvia Osewalt 
Scott Cummings (Chairman) 

Alternates: 
Francis Reddington (absent) 
Chase Sams 

Ex-parte Communications 

None 

Approval of Minutes 

JACl{SONVILLE 
BEACH 

It was moved by Mr. Moreland, seconded by Mr. Truhlar, and passed unanimously, to 
approve the following minutes as presented: 

• Board of Adjustment meeting held on September 7, 2016. 

Correspondence 

Mr. Cummings noted that there was correspondence that would be reviewed as part of the 
cases tonight. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

(A) Case Number: BOA 16-100171 
Name of Applicant: Lisa Ann Zeller 

Property Address: 44 7 South 11th A venue 

BOA 161101 mins Page 1 of7 



Minutes of Board of Adjustment Meeting 
Tuesday, November 1, 2016 

Motion to Approve: It was moved by Mr. Moreland, seconded by Ms. Osewalt, 
to approve a request for 40% lot coverage in lieu of 35% maximum to allow for a 
swimming pool addition to an existing single-family dwelling. 

Applicant: The applicant, Lisa Zeller, 44 7 11th A venue South, stated that she 
recently built a pool with only nine inches around the pool and would like to build 
a three-foot addition around the pool to avoid walking in the dirt to get to the pool. 
She added that she had correspondence from the neighbors who had no problem 
with the request. 

Mr. Cummings noted the correspondence from the neighbors expressing no 
concern. 

Mr. Moreland asked about the hardship. Mr. Mann noted that the zoning required 
6000 square feet as the minimum lot size, and this lot exceeded that size. Mr. 
Moreland noted that there is an alley behind the lot at ground level. 

Mr. Cummings noted that this request was not out of the ordinary and there was no 
opposition to the proposal from the neighbors. 

Public Hearing: 

There was no one present to speak in favor of or in opposition to the requested 
vanance. 

Discussion: 

Mr. Cummings noted that there still would be 24 feet from the pool to the 
neighboring parcel. 

Roll Call Vote: Ayes - Buck, Cummings, Moreland, Osewalt, and Truhlar. 
The motion was approved unanimously. 

(B) Case Number: BOA 16-100172 
Name of Applicant: Starfish Group Properties, Inc. 

Property Address: 136 North 18th Avenue 

Motion to Approve: It was moved by Mr. Moreland, seconded by Ms. Osewalt, 
to approve a request for a front yard setback of 6.5 feet in lieu of 20 feet required; 
for an easterly side yard setback of four feet in lieu of 10 feet required and a 
westerly side yard setback of eight feet in lieu of 16 feet required; and for 37% lot 
coverage in lieu of 35% maximum to allow for a new two-family dwelling. 

Applicant: The applicant, Andy Cromer, 11628 Aspen Creek Drive, Fort Worth, 
Texas, stated that the hardship is that the setbacks do not allow for the proposed 

BOA 161101 mins Page2of7 



Minutes of Board of Adjustment Meeting 
Tuesday, November 1, 2016 

structure. He stated that they hope to use the blueprint of an existing structure to 
build this one. Mr. Cromer stated that there is 4 7 feet from the back of the structure 
to the rear property line. In response to Mr. Moreland, he stated that they want to 
line up with the existing structures along the street. 

Mr. Buck asked about right-of-way width. Mr. Mann stated that it would be 80 feet 
of right-of-way so there should be 40 feet. Mr. Buck noted that they do not have 
room to park a car on his property and wondered why there are asking for a 6.5 feet 
setback. Mr. Cromer asked why they couldn't park in the garage. Ms. Osewalt 
stated that typically wasn't the case - many times garages are used for storage so 
there is no guarantee they would use the garage to park the car. 

Mr. Cummings noted that there is already a variance for 20 feet for the property 
and they currently have 34 feet. Mr. Mann noted that the variance is not applicable 
because that was for a multi-family building. 

Mr. Moreland stated that they wouldn' t need the side yard setbacks if they made 
the units more narrow, adding that they could make a comparable product with not 
nearly the variances requested. Mr. Cromer stated that the builder they used on 
other properties provided the blueprints of the product that they would like to 
provide. 

Public Hearing: 

Mr. Cummings noted that they had one card form someone who opposed the 
proposal. He added that there was also correspondence from those in opposition. 

Discussion: 

Mr. Moreland stated that there were many ways this property could be built out 
without these variances. Mr. Truhlar agreed, stating that he didn't see a hardship. 

Roll Call Vote: Nays - Cummings, Moreland, Osewalt, Truhlar, and Buck. 
The motion was denied unanimously. 

(C) -Case Number: BOA 16-100173 
Name of Applicant: Starfish Group Properties, Inc. 

Property Address: 1304 North 4th Street 

Motion to Approve: It was moved by Mr. Moreland, seconded by Mr. Truhlar, to 
approve a request for a front yard setback of 10 feet in lieu of 20 feet required; for 
an northerly side yard setback of six feet in lieu of 10 feet required and a southerly 
comer side yard setback of six feet in lieu of 10 feet required; for a rear yard setback 
of 17 feet in lieu of 30 feet required; and for 66% lot coverage in lieu of 65% 
maximum to allow for construction of four townhouses. 

BOA 161101 rnins Page 3 of7 



Minutes of Board of Adjustment Meeting 
Tuesday, November 1, 2016 

Applicant: The applicant, Andy Cromer, 11628 Aspen Creek Drive, Fort Worth, 
Texas, provided a handout of drawings of a product much like they would like to 
build. He stated that there is the demand for this type of product in the City. He 
stated that the lot size is a hardship. 

Ms. Osewalt noted that the lot was conforming in size and question why there 
would be a hardship. Discussion followed on the configuration of the driveway 
and the parking situation. 

Mr. Moreland stated that the thought this was too much structure on this parcel, 
noting that three units instead of four would provide more parking. 

Public Hearing: 

Mr. Marcus Kampfe, 422 13th Avenue North, expressed his opposition to the 
proposal. He thought the traffic would be of concern to the school that was located 
close by. He agreed that three units would be better. 

Mr. Cromer stated that he thought more families in the neighborhood would be a 
good thing. 

Discussion: 

Ms. Osewalt stated that she had concerns with the parking situation and didn 't see 
that there was a hardship. Mr. Buck expressed concern about the sight line with 
the school so close. 

Roll Call Vote: Nays - Moreland, Osewalt, Truhlar, Buck, Cummings. 
The motion was denied unanimously. 

(D) Case Number: BOA 16-100174 
Name of Applicant: Joseph Kinstle 

Property Address: 5 Fairway Lane 

Motion to Approve: It was moved by Mr. Moreland, seconded by Ms. Osewalt, 
to approve a request for a westerly side yard of five feet in lieu of 10 feet required 
and for a rear yard setback of 17 feet in lieu of 30 feet required to allow for a rear 
yard addition to an existing single-family dwelling. 

Applicant: The applicant, Joseph Kinstle, 5 Fairway Lane, stated he wanted a 
storage shed for his boat. Mr. Mann asked about the connection to the house. Mr. 
Kinstle stated that it would be an open walkway. After discussion from Mr. Mann, 
Mr. Kinstle stated that it would be covered and therefore it is an addition to the 
house. 

BOA 161101 mins Page 4 of7 



Minutes of Board of Adjustment Meeting 
Tuesday, November 1, 2016 

Public Hearing: 

There was no one present to speak in favor of or in opposition to the requested 
vanance. 

Discussion: 

Mr. Moreland noted that the hardship was the position of the current house that 
makes it impossible to put in the storage shed without a variance. 

Roll Call Vote: Ayes - Truhlar, Buck, Cummings, Moreland, and Osewalt. 
The motion was approved unanimously. 

(E) Case Number: BOA 16-100175 
Name of Applicant: Atkins Builders, Inc. 

Property Address: 1930 North pt Street 

Motion to Approve: It was moved by Mr. Moreland, seconded by Ms. Osewalt, 
to approve a request for a side yard of 6 feet in lieu of 10 feet required and a comer 
side yard of 10 feet in lieu of 14.8 feet required; for a rear yard setback of 10 feet 
in lieu of 30 feet required; and for 52.6% lot coverage in lieu of 35% maximum to 
allow for construction of a new two-family dwelling. 

Applicant: The applicant, John Atkins, 286 South 1st Street, stated that the lot was 
only 85 feet deep, which is non-conforming. He stated that they could build a three
family dwelling, which would allow 65% lot coverage, whereas a two-family 
dwelling only allows for 35% lot coverage. Mr. Mann noted that because the lot 
would be subdivided that comer side yard setback would not be required. He noted 
that the existing unit is about 100 years old and could not be rehabbed. Discussion 
followed on the layout of the building. 

Mr. Moreland stated that two buildings on this parcel are preferable to three 
buildings that could be built. 

Public Hearing: 

Ms. Katheryn Hancock, 116 19th A venue North, stated that many of her planned 
remarks may have been addressed already. Mr. Mann clarified how a multi-family 
unit could have 65% lot coverage. Ms. Hancock stated that there were concerns 
with Pelican Point parking and visibility concerns. 

Mr. Cummings noted there was correspondence from a number of people 
expressing opposition to the request. 

Mr. Atkins stated that these letters were from condo owners to the north and they 

BOA 161101 mins Page 5 of7 



Minutes of Board of Adjustment Meeting 
Tuesday, November 1, 2016 

were concerned that it would limit their view. He added that the setback would not 
in any way hinder their view. He added that the condos were much more dense and 
much taller than his proposed building. 

Discussion: 

Mr. Buck noted that in the other two cases there was not sufficient space to park 
cars. Mr. Atkins noted that these were three-car garages, which were not common 
in the city. 

Mr. Truhlar noted that if they denied it he could come back with a three-unit 
building. 

Roll Call Vote: Ayes -Truhlar, Buck, Cummings, and Moreland. 
Nays - Osewalt. 
The motion was approved 4-1. 

(F) Case Number: BOA 16-100176 
Name of Applicant: Edith Lotz 

Property Address: 489 South Lower 8th A venue 

Motion to Approve: It was moved by Mr. Moreland, seconded by Ms. Osewalt, 
to approve a request for a rear yard setback of 20 feet in lieu of 30 feet required and 
for 40% lot coverage in lieu of 35% maximum to allow for a screen room addition 
to an existing single-family residence. 

Applicant: The applicant, Edith Lotz, 489 South Lower 8th A venue, stated that a 
screen room could allow her some privacy while she sits out to read. She stated 
that there are balconies on the adjacent property that allow people to see within her 
property. 

Public Hearing: 

There was no one present to speak in favor of or in opposition to the requested 
vanance. 

Discussion: 

Mr. Moreland noted that the request was reasonable. 

Roll Call Vote: Ayes - Buck, Cummings, Moreland, Osewalt, and Truhlar 
The motion was approved unanimously. 

BOA 161101 mins Page 6 of7 



Minutes of Board of Adjustment Meeting 
Tuesday, November 1, 2016 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 

None 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:08 P.M. 

Submitted by: Amber Maria Lehman 
Senior Secretary 

BOA 161101 mins 

Date: 

Page 7 of7 


